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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERALs
BEBFASES

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual General Meeting of Ngai Hing Hong ~ HBBE&REFTERAR([ALF)) BN
Company Limited (the “Company") will be held at Caine Room, Level 7, Conrad E=F+_F=ZHEH=FtHIHREEE
Hotel, Pacific Place, 88 Queensway, Hong Kong, on Wednesday, 3rd December 2003 ~ &£ E#E88 AL BB ABEE/IEEFERT
at 10:00 am. for the following purposes: BRREFAE - HEWMT:

I.  To receive and consider the audited consolidated financial statements and the 1. HERZREE_TE=F/xE=+H

reports of the directors and auditors for the year ended 30th June 2003. HEEARABEGREANBERER - &
EEWSERGYMBREE
2. To declare a final dividend for the year ended 30th June 2003. 2. ERBE-_TTR=FAA=THLEFE
RER S o

3. To re-elect directors and to authorise the Board of Directors to fix their 3, EREE YRHEEZSEEHTHEHE -

remuneration.

4. To appoint auditors and to authorise the Board of Directors to fix their 4. ZEZHE  WHREESEE T HMW

remuneration. %o

5. As special business, to consider and, if thought fit, pass with or without 5. UHRIFEHR  ZETHERARL

amendments the following resolutions as Ordinary Resolutions: BIRBATIRBRAERREAR
A, “THAT: A B3
(a) subject to paragraph (c) below, the exercise by the directors during (@) EXRERCBRZABT —
the Relevant Period (as defined below) of all powers of the BREEGHBATLIESERN
Company to allot, issue and deal with additional shares in the BREE(EER T AT
capital of the Company and to make and grant offers, agreements ARz —IENEE - BT
and options which would or might require the exercise of such REBARRRBRAR 2 BIMNE
power be and is hereby generally and unconditionally approved; 3 R ETSL AR i 7T B AR 1T 38 %
BNz EREE  HERE
HRHE
(b) the approval in paragraph (a) above shall authorise the directors (b)  EX(a)BRFt B RS
during the Relevant Period to make and grant offers, agreements EREHHRT MR Falad
and options which would or might require the exercise of such mEERBYRSERERT
power during or after the end of the Relevant Period; FRBEEN2ES BERE
HHE

4 ANNUAL REPORT 2002/2003



NNUAL GENERAL MEETING
| BEEAEASES

(©

the aggregate nominal amount of share capital allotted or agreed
conditionally or unconditionally to be allotted (whether pursuant to
an option or otherwise) by the directors pursuant to the approval
in paragraph (a) above, otherwise than pursuant to (i) a Rights Issue
(as defined below); (ii) the exercise of rights of subscription under
the terms of any warrants or other securities issued by the
Company as at the date of this resolution carrying a right to
subscribe for or purchase shares of the Company; or (iii) the
exercise of the subscription rights under the share option schemes
of the Company, shall not exceed 20 per cent. of the aggregate
nominal amount of the share capital of the Company in issue as at
the date of this resolution and the said approval shall be limited

accordingly; and

for the purposes of this resolution:

“Relevant Period” means the period from the passing of this

resolution until whichever is the earliest of:

(i) the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the

Company;

(i) the expiration of the period within which the next annual
general meeting of the Company is required by the Bye-laws

of the Company or any applicable law to be held; and

(iii) the revocation or variation of the authority given under this
resolution by an ordinary resolution of the shareholders of

the Company in general meeting ; and
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENE
BEBFASES

“Rights Issue” means an offer of shares open for a period fixed by
the directors to holders of shares on the register of members of
the Company on a fixed record date in proportion to their then
holdings of such shares (subject to such exclusions or other
arrangements as the directors of the Company may deem
necessary or expedient in relation to fractional entitlements or legal
or practical problems under the laws of, or the requirements of any
recognised regulatory body or any stock exchange in, any

territory).”

B. “THAT:

(a) the exercise by the directors of the Company during the Relevant

Period (as defined below) of all powers of the Company to
repurchase shares of HK$0.10 each in the capital of the Company
on the Stock Exchange, subject to and in accordance with all
applicable laws, be and is hereby generally and unconditionally

approved,

(b) the aggregate nominal amount of shares of the Company to be

(©

repurchased by the Company pursuant to the approval in
paragraph (a) above during the Relevant Period shall not exceed 0
per cent. of the aggregate nominal amount of the share capital of
the Company in issue as at the date of this resolution and the said

approval shall be limited accordingly; and
for the purposes of this resolution:
“Relevant Period” means the period from the passing of this

resolution until whichever is the earliest of:

(i) the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the

Company;
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NNUAL GENERAL MEETING
| BEEAEASES

(i) the expiration of the period within which the next annual general
meeting of the Company is required by the Bye-laws of the

Company or any applicable law to be held; and

(iii) the revocation or variation of the authority given under this
resolution by an ordinary resolution of the shareholders of the

Company in general meeting”

C. "THAT conditional upon resolution no.5B above being passed, the aggregate
nominal amount of the number of shares in the capital of the Company which
are repurchased by the Company under the authority granted to the directors
as mentioned in resolution no.5B above shall be added to the aggregate
nominal amount of share capital that may be allotted or agreed conditionally
or unconditionally to be allotted by the directors of the Company pursuant to
resolution no.5A above, provided that such amount shall not exceed 10 per
cent. of the aggregate nominal amount of the share capital of the Company in

issue as at the date of passing this Resolution.”

By Order of the Board
CHING Yu Lung

Company Secretary

Hong Kong,
8th October 2003

Principal Office:

Unit 3, éth Floor
Hopeful Factory Centre
|0 Wo Shing Street

Fo Tan, New Territories

Hong Kong
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENE
BEBFASES

Notes:

A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting convened by the above
notice is entitled to appoint one or more proxies to attend and vote in his

stead. A proxy need not be a member of the Company.

In order to be valid, a form of proxy and (if required by the Board of
Directors) the power of attorney or other authority, if any, under which it is
signed or a certified copy of that power of attorney or authority, must be
deposited at the Company's principal office not less than 48 hours before the

time for holding the meeting or adjourned meeting.

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed from Friday, 28th
November 2003 to Wednesday, 3rd December 2003 (both dates inclusive)
during which period no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to qualify
for the proposed final dividend to be approved at the meeting, all properly
completed transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company's Branch Registrars in Hong Kong, Abacus Share
Registrars Limited, G/F, Bank of East Asia Harbour View Centre, 56 Gloucester
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:00 p.m. on Thursday, 27th
November 2003.
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SRR BITAERLMT o
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BAND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
| EENSEEEAER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr HUI Sai Chung, aged 56, is a co-founder of the Group. He is responsible for
formulating and overseeing the implementation of the Group's business strategy. He
is also responsible for the marketing and sales functions of the Group. He has more

than 33 years' experience in the plastics industry.

Mr HUI Kwok Kwong, aged 54, is a co-founder of the Group. He is responsible
for the overall operations and administration of the Group. He has more than 33

years' experience in the plastics industry.

Dr WONG Chi Ying, Anthony, aged 47, is the Chief Operating Officer of Hong
Kong Colour Technology Ltd., Dongguan Ngai Hing Plastic Materials Ltd., Shanghai
Ngai Hing Plastic Materials Co., Ltd. and Tsing Tao Ngai Hing Plastic Materials Co.,
Ltd. He is responsible for overseeing the production operations of the Group.
Before joining the Group in the present capacity, Dr Wong was an Associate
Professor in the Department of Industrial and Manufacturing Systems Engineering of
The University of Hong Kong. He holds a Ph.D degree in chemical engineering and is
also a Chartered Engineer, a corporate member of The Institution of Chemical
Engineers and a member of The Hong Kong Institution of Engineers. He had worked
for two multinational chemical companies for three years prior to taking up a

lecturer post with The University of Hong Kong in 1986.

Mr LAl Kam Wabh, aged 52, is the Deputy Managing Director of the Company. Mr
Lai holds a Master of Arts degree, is a member of the Law Society of Hong Kong,
England and Wales and Australian Capital Territory. He has been practising law for
over |9 years. He is also an Associate of the Hong Kong Institute of Arbitrators, a
Member of the Chartered Institute of Arbitrators and a Manager of a secondary

school in Hong Kong.

Mr CHING Yu Lung, aged 33, is the Finance Director & Company Secretary of the
Group. He holds a bachelor degree in Business Administration and is a Fellow Member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, an Associate Member of the
Hong Kong Society of Accountants and a member of the American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. He has over | | years' experience in auditing, finance and

accounting and is responsible for the financial management of the Group.

Madam LIU Sau Lai, aged 45, is responsible for personnel and office

administration of the Group. She joined the Group in 1977.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIO.
EENSEEEAS

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul, aged 52, is the precedent partner of Paul W. C. Ho &
Company, Certified Public Accountants. He holds a Bachelor degree in Social
Sciences and is an associate member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales, United Kingdom and a fellow member of the Hong Kong Society

of Accountants.

Mr FONG Pong Hing, aged 53, is the Managing Director of Cathay Pigments
Australasia Pty Ltd (“Cathay Pigments") in Australia. Cathay Pigments specialises in
the manufacture and trading of inorganic pigments in the Australian market. Mr Fong
obtained a Master of Philosophy (Chemistry) degree from The Chinese University of
Hong Kong in 1975. Before he retired from Du Pont China Limited in July 2003, he
had spent most of his career working for multinational chemicals and technology
companies covering the Hong Kong and the Greater China area with emphasis in

engineering plastics market.

Dr LAM Kwok Kin, Joseph, aged 57, holds a Ph.D. degree in Chemistry. He had
worked for a multinational chemical company for |7 years and was responsible for
the sales, marketing, technical service and regional management of specialty additives
products in the Asia-Pacific region. He is experienced in application and new
product development for a range of industries including PVC, plastics, masterbatch,
coating, water-base & solvent-base dispersions, hot-melt and cable & wire. He is
currently the managing director of a company that focusing on environmentally

friendly materials including halogen free and heavy metal free plastics.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr NG Tat Ching, Ben, aged 48, Director of Ngai Hing Engineering Plastic
Materials Limited, is responsible for marketing and product management of
engineering plastic materials for the Group. He holds a Bachelor degree in chemistry
from The Chinese University of Hong Kong. Mr Ng joined the Group in 1997 and
has over 22 years' experience in the plastics industry globally. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr Ng has held several key positions in various multinational companies for

engineering plastic materials sales and marketing in Asia Pacific regions.
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ND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EBELSEEEAER

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

Mr FONG Kwok Mo, aged 44, is the General Manager of Shanghai Ngai Hing
Plastic Materials Co., Ltd. and Tsing Tao Ngai Hing Plastic Materials Co., Ltd. He holds
a certificate in textile technology from the Hong Kong Polytechnic (The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University's predecessor) and is responsible for overseeing the
operations of the Group in Shanghai and Qingdao, the People's Republic of China
(the "PRC"). He joined the Group in 1992 and has 22 years' experience in

production management.

Mr NG Chi Ming, aged 38, is a General Manager and is responsible for supervising
the overall operations in a factory in Dongguan, the PRC. He holds a higher diploma
in textile chemistry from the Hong Kong Polytechnic (The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University's predecessor). He joined the Group in 1988 and left in 1995. He re-
joined the Group in early 1998 and has over 14 years’ experience in plastics

colouration and plastics injections moulding technologies.

Mr CHUNG Si Leung, Ricky, aged 45, is a Director of Ngai Hing Engineering
Plastic Materials Limited and is responsible for sales of engineering plastic materials
for the Group. He holds a Bachelor degree in chemistry from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong. He joined the Group in 1999 and has over 21 years'

experience in the plastics industry.

Mr WONG Chi Hang, Eric, aged 32, is the General Manager of Ngai Hing Hong
Plastic Materials Limited and is responsible for the sales and marketing in the
Group's trading business. He holds a Bachelor degree in chemistry from The
University of Hong Kong and a Master degree in Business Administration from the
University of South Australia. He joined the Group in 1994 and has over 9 years'

experience in sales & marketing.
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:HAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EWHRE

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

For the year ended 30th June 2003, Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited (the
"Company") and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “"Group") recorded
an audited consolidated turnover of HK$874,976,000 (2002: HK$747,281,000) and
profit attributable to shareholders of HK$40,462,000 (2002: HK$38,408,000).
Earnings per share for the year amounted to HK13.49 cents (2002: HK12.80 cents).
The Board has recommended a final dividend of HK5.0 cents (2002: HK5.0 cents)
per share. Together with the interim dividend of HK3.0 cents (2002: HK2.0 cents)
per share, total dividend payment for the year under review will amount to HK8.0

cents (2002: HK7.0 cents) per share.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group managed to overcome many challenges and achieved positive
development in 2002/03. Though the global economic slowdown lingered in the
first-half of the year, there were growing signs of increasing in demand for plastics
from around the world in the aftermath of the 911 terrorist attacks, which helped
to drive in the Group's business. Results in the first-half of the year therefore
outperformed that of the previous first-half year. The Group, however, experienced a
decline in profit in the second-half as compared with the same period last year due
to the negative impact of the war in Iraq and the outbreak of Severe Acute
Respiratory Syndrome (“SARS"). Despite such turmoil, the Group managed to
record improved results as compared to last year, with turnover and profit increasing
by 17.1% and 5.3% respectively. The improvement in overall performance was
attributable to the efforts of its determined management team, solid business

foundations and flexible business strategies.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMEN
ERRS

The Group has increased its emphasis on developing the manufacturing business
with high profit margins in recent years. The colourants and engineering plastics
manufacturing segment saw favourable market demand during the first-half of the
year under review, resulting in significant increase in turnover in this business
segment. The Group's tailor-made and cost-effective engineering plastics, which have
persistently been gaining popularity in the market, also drove continuing growth in

turnover in this business segment in the second-half of the year under review.

Capitalising on the Group's extensive experience in the colourants business, it
developed colourants applications and techniques in the production of construction
materials, to strengthen its marketing edge. The Group has also cooperated with
building materials companies in the People's Republic of China (the "PRC") for the
provision of the colourants application and techniques, thereby extending its existing
customers base to the construction sector and providing additional source of

revenue for the Group.

With regard to the plastics trading business, revenues began to generate from
southern China after the Group developed new customer networks, with the
establishment of Ngai Hing (GZFTZ) Trading Co,, Ltd. in the Guangzhou Free Trade
Zone in May 2002.

In the latter half of the reporting year, the war in Iraq and the SARS outbreak in the
PRC and Hong Kong adversely affected both economies, resulting in a downturn in
the trading business, due to the extremely cautious ordering approach adopted by
customers during the period. In view of this gloomy market environment, strategic
measures were adopted and plastic products were made available at highly
competitive prices. As a result, the sales of these products performed well in the
market. While the gross profit margin of the trading business declined, the Group
still achieved double-digit percentage growth in turnover during the year under

review.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
EFHRS

During the year under review, the Group commenced operations of its three new
plants in Qingdao, Shanghai and Hong Kong, which greatly enhanced the Group's
production capacities. In the meantime, the Group is in the course of consolidating

its internal operations to achieve cost efficiencies in production.

The Group also continues to exercise stringent cost control measures to reduce
finance costs. At the same time, in recognition of its efforts and achievements,
Dongguan Ngai Hing Plastic Materials Ltd,, a subsidiary of the Group, received
accreditation as a Hi-tech Enterprise from the PRC Government in May last year.
This accomplishment not only highlighted its advanced production equipment,
innovative technology and professional operations, but also entitling the Group to

apply for many tax exemptions, in turn greatly reducing its taxation charges.

PROSPECTS

With strong confidence in the prospects of the PRC market, the Group has planned
to expand its trading business in the PRC. Following its success in the Guangzhou
Free Trade Zone, the Group has decided to set up more representative offices in

major cities in the PRC.

Specialists with extensive industry and technical knowledge have joined the Group,
strengthening its research and development capabilities. This move will help the
Group to develop more new and improved products, increase its product range and

raise its competitive edge in the industry.

The future appears increasingly promising for the PRC, especially with its accession
to the World Trade Organization and the recent signing of the Closer Economic
Partnership Arrangement (CEPA). These factors are creating a more favourable
business environment. The Group commenced the operation of its plant in Hong
Kong this year, enabling it to take advantage of these emerging opportunities. The
Group is poised to capture the many opportunities in future as it continues to
provide quality products and value-added services to its customers and | am

confident that the Group will attain new heights of excellence in future.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENTI
ERRS

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group generally finances its operations with internally generated cashflow and
banking facilities provided by its principal bankers. As at 30th June 2003, the Group
has available aggregate bank loan facilities of approximately HK$160,229,000, of
which HK$87,031,000 have been utilised and were secured by corporate guarantee
issued by the Company and legal charges on certain leasehold land and buildings in
the PRC and Hong Kong owned by the Group (see note | | to the accounts). The
Group's cash and bank balances and short term bank deposits as at 30th June 2003
amounted to approximately HK$63,995,000. The Group's gearing ratio as at 30th
June 2003 was approximately 36 per cent., based on the total bank borrowings of
approximately HK$87,031,000, together with obligations under finance leases of
HK$ 17,738,000 and the shareholders’ funds of approximately HK$290,722,000. As
the Group's borrowings and cash balances are primarily denominated in Hong Kong

dollars, the Group has no significant exposure to foreign currency fluctuations.

Details of the Group's capital commitments and the Company's contingent liabilities

are disclosed in notes 20 and 2| to the accounts respectively.

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

As at 30th June 2003, the Group employed a total of 800 full-time employees. The
Group's emolument policies are formulated on the performance of individual
employees and are reviewed annually. The Group has an incentive scheme which is
geared to the profit of the Group and the performance of its employees, as an
incentive to motivate its employees to increase their contribution to the Group. The
Group also provides social and medical insurance coverage, and provident fund
scheme (as the case may be) to its employees depending on the location of such

employees.
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APPRECIATION o

| would like to conclude this Statement by thanking the Group's suppliers, customers &6 - RAERBRAAEBNERER - BFPR
and shareholders for their excellent support, my fellow directors, the Group’s ~ BE—HURNIH  NAEENES - 88
executives, management and all of the staff for their outstanding performance and ~ ERFIBEETIEBERRKEN—FHEME

contributions during such challenging year. BHER  BURLHE -
HUI Sai Chung IR

Chairman FitE

Hong Kong, Bk

8th October 2003 “ET=FTANA
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PORT OF THE DIRECTORS

BEERRESE

The Directors submit their report together with the audited accounts for the year
ended 30th June 2003.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL ANALYSIS OF
OPERATIONS
The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal activities

of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 24 to the accounts.

An analysis of the Group's performance for the year by geographical segment is set

out in note 2 to the accounts.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated profit and loss

account on page 38.

The Directors have declared an interim dividend of HK3.0 cents per ordinary share,
totalling HK$9,000,000, which was paid on 10th April 2003.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HKS5.0 cents per
ordinary share, totally HK$15,000,000.

ERQEUREBE_TT=FAA=TRL
FRZBEEREERER -

FEXRERHER S 2 BERE
ARRIZTEERAREER  EXEHEA
BZEBERAENEE M2 -

FREBEBR S ZBERASH BN KA M
2 e
XERSE

AEEEEHENEIBEZHFABRK

EEEON-_SE=FMOATHRERHRE
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RESERVES
Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during the year are set

out in note |7 to the accounts.

FIXED ASSETS

The Company did not own any fixed assets during the year

Details of the movements in fixed assets of the Group during the year are set out in

note || to the accounts.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 30th June 2003, the reserves of the Company available for distribution,
comprising the contributed surplus and retained earnings, amounted to
approximately HK$77,705,000.

Under The Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), a company may not
declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus, if there
are reasonable grounds for believing that (i) the company is, or would after the
payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become due; (i) the realisable value
of the company's assets would thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and

its issued share capital and share premium account.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last

five financial years is set out on page 78.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company's Bye-laws and

there are no restrictions against such rights under the laws in Bermuda.
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PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year. Neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or sold any of the Company's

listed securities during the year.

SHARE OPTIONS

On 5th December 2002, the Company has adopted a new share option scheme
(the “"New Scheme") and terminated the old share option scheme. Under the terms
of the New Scheme, the Directors may, at their discretion, invite Directors and
employees of the Group to take up options (the “Share Options") to subscribe for

shares in the Company subject to the terms and conditions stipulated therein.

Details of the New Scheme are as follows:

(i)  Purpose
The New Scheme is designed to give Directors and employees of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries an equity interest in the Company in order
to enhance long-term shareholder value, The granting of Share Options will
also help the Company to attract and motivate individuals with experience and

ability and to reward individuals for past and future performance.

(i) Qualifying participants
Any employee including any Director of the Company or any of its subsidiaries,

(i) Maximum number of shares

The maximum number of shares subject to the New Scheme must not when
aggregated with any shares subject to any other share option schemes exceed
|0% of the shares in issue from time to time (excluding any shares which have
been duly allotted and issued upon the exercise of the Share Options granted
pursuant to the New Scheme and any other schemes). The total number of
shares available for issue under the New Scheme as at the date of the annual
report is 30,000,000, which is 10% of the issued share capital of the Company
as of that date.

2002/2003 FERE

BE - HERREAARZEmRS

ARFARAFREEREERER - FRFAHIHE
R BRRRAFEE T EBENLEARRF
ZEmES o

AR

ARAZBRRR_BE_F+_ARAKMKT
BB (TRRAETR)) - YREIUH
TEBRE B - REBHBREN B ZHER
&t EFEURBRALRELEERER
BEATRBARBRN 2 BARE ([BEAE]) -

HEBBAER BRI

(i) BH
MBERESHEENARRREMELR
RAZEEREERTHE  BAQFE
RARBEEREE AT - LREB
EREREMRAZAL  MRER
MR BE -

(i) EEBSRE
ARRFEMBRRZERESR (BREE
HEE) -

(iii) Rt RE-E
BEFBRES BT FUBETZRG
By BHRRBECAEOBRESS
AR TFUBTZROE  THBBTH
BREIBRHZEA 2T (FRBEETEH
AR B R E ot &) E R E
RETZERMBRS) c REERFEA
B BERBRESSTHBETZRG
# % /30,000,000 - HEREBAXLD
AERTRAEAZT -

21



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFRRLE |

SHARE OPTIONS (Cont'd)

(iii) Maximum number of shares (Cont'd)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

The maximum entitlement for any one qualifying participant is that the total
number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the Share Options
granted to each qualifying participant under the New Scheme and any other
option schemes (including exercised and outstanding Share Options) in any
| 2-month period shall not exceed | per cent. of the total number of shares in

issue.

Option period

In respect of any particular Share Option, such period the Board of Directors
may in its absolute discretion determine, save that such period shall not expire
more than |0 years from the date on which a Share Option is granted and

accepted by the grantee,

Amount payable on application or acceptance

An offer of the grant of an option shall remain open for acceptance for a
period of 28 days from the date of grant. An offer of the grant of the Share
Option shall be deemed to have been accepted and to have taken effect when
a letter comprising acceptance of the Share Option duly signed by the grantee

is received by the Company.

Exercise price

The exercise price in respect of any particular option shall be (i) the closing
price of the shares of the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited's (the “Stock Exchange") daily quotations sheet on the date of
grant, (ii) the average price of the shares for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant or (iii) the nominal value of the share (whichever

is the greater).
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SHARE OPTIONS (Contd) BARE (®)

(vii) The remaining life of the New Scheme (vii) FTA8 IR A& &t &2 T IR
The Board of Directors shall be entitled at any time within 10 years between ESEERN _TT_FT_RAAZE
5th December 2002 and 4th December 2012 to offer the grant of an option “E2-—F+-AmB+FAEERE
to any qualifying participants, FAeERSRERNBRE -
Details of the movements of Share Options granted under the New Scheme REFAERE BRER_ST=F
during the year and outstanding as at 30th June 2003 are as follows: NAZTERFAZEHWMT -

Number of Share Options
BREzZROBE

Granted Exercised

Date of Exercise Exercise Beginning of  during the during the End of
grant period price the year year year  the year
Rt B TR TRE &4 ERRE  FRTE £X
Executive directors
HWTES
Mr HUI Sai Chung 2nd May 2003 2nd May 2004 to HK$0.82 — 1,000,000 — 1,000,000
SR “RT=E Ist May 2009 08277
RAZH “ETFTREOACAE
“EENFEA-A
2nd May 2003 2nd May 2005 to HK$0.82 — 1,000,000 — 1,000,000
—RE=E I'st May 2009 082#&T
AAZH —ZThERACAE
“FFNFRA-RA
2nd May 2003 2nd May 2006 to HK$0.82 — 1,000,000 — 1,000,000
e Se Sy S Ist May 2009 0827
RAZH “FFAFOAZAE
“RFAFRA-A
Mr HUI Kwok Kwong 2nd May 2003 2nd May 2004 to HK$0.82 — 1,000,000 — 1,000,000
AEREE ZEE=HR st May 2009 0827
RAZH “FTFRFOAZAE
“FFNFRA-RA
2nd May 2003 2nd May 2005 to HK$0.82 — 1,000,000 — 1,000,000
b 3 g2 st May 2009 082 T
RAZH “EFThFRACAE
—ZFNFHA-A
2nd May 2003 2nd May 2006 to HK$0.82 — 1,000,000 — 1,000,000
—g%= I'st May 2009 0827 7T
HAZH —ZRERFHACAE
“EFNFHA-A

2002/2003 ERES 23



REPORT OF THE DIRECIO
EFEREE

SHARE OPTIONS (Contd) BARE

Number of Share Options
BREZROKA

Granted Exercised

Date of Exercise Exercise Beginning of  during the during the End of
grant period price the year year year  the year
RiAH TR TR £ ERRlE  FRTE £X

Executive directors (Cont'd)

YiTES (8)
Dr WONG Chi Ying, 2nd May 2003 2nd May 2004 to HK$0.82 - 1,000,000 — 1,000,000
Anthony —EE=F st May 2009 082 %
BETEEL TA=H “ZTMFRA-RZE
—EFNFHA-B
2nd May 2003 2nd May 2005 to HK$0.82 — 1,000,000 — 1,000,000
—TE=F Ist May 2009 082
TAZH “2TLRFRAZHE
“EENFHA-AH
2nd May 2003 2nd May 2006 to HK$0.82 — 1,000,000 — 1,000,000
—ET=F Ist May 2009 0.82 77T
A=A “RZ2 F¥RA-HE
“ZENERA-R
Mr LAl Kam Wah 2nd May 2003 2nd May 2004 to HK$0.82 — 1,000,000 — 1,000,000
BRELE “TT=F I'st May 2009 082 T
f1A=AH “ZEMERA-AE
“EENERA-R
2nd May 2003 2nd May 2005 to HK$0.82 - 1,000,000 — 1,000,000
ZTT=F st May 2009 082 &
AAZ=H “ZTTAFRACHE
“EFNFRA-B
2nd May 2003 2nd May 2006 to HK$0.82 — 1,000,000 — 1,000,000
_EE=F Ist May 2009 082 TT
TAZH 2R 5nHA-RE
“EENERA-H
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SHARE OPTIONS (Contd) BARE (®)

Number of Share Options
BREZROKA

Granted Exercised

Date of Exercise Exercise Beginning of  during the during the End of
grant period price the year year year  the year
i A TR TRE £ Rl FRTE £X

Executive directors (Cont'd)

HOES(8)
Mr CHING Yu Lung Ind May 2003 2nd May 2004 to HK$0.82 = 1,000,000 — 1,000,000
EmEis ZTT=F I'st May 2009 082 T
TR=H “ZTMERA-RAE
—EFNFHA-H
2nd May 2003 2nd May 2005 to HK$0.82 — 1,000,000 — 1,000,000
—TT=F st May 2009 082#TT
hARZH “2TLRFRAZHE
“EENFHA-H
2nd May 2003 2nd May 2006 to HK$0.82 _ 1,000,000 — 1,000,000
—EE=F I'st May 2009 082#7T
TA=H kS S5 = e =
—ZENERA-R
Madam LIU Sau Lai 2nd May 2003 2nd May 2004 to HK$0.82 — 1,000,000 — 1,000,000
BEEBRL —TT=F I'st May 2009 082 T
FRZH “Z2TMERA-AE
“2TNERA-H
2nd May 2003 2nd May 2005 to HK$0.82 - 1,000,000 — 1,000,000
—TT=F st May 2009 082&TT
AAZ=H “ZTTAFRA-HAE
“EFNFHA-H
2nd May 2003 2nd May 2006 to HK$0.82 — 1,000,000 — 1,000,000
—TF=F Ist May 2009 0827 T
TAZH b S RN: S = i =
“EEN§HA-H
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SHARE OPTIONS (Cont'd)

BRE @

Number of Share Options

BREZRO#E
Granted Exercised
Date of Exercise Exercise Beginning of  during the during the End of
grant period price the year year year the year
RHiA 8 FIEHR g £4 FREE FRTE X
Other continuous 30th April 2003 30th April 2004 to HK$0.82 — 500,000 — 500,000
contract employees _—TT=F 29th April 2009 082 T
ERHANESR mA=+H —REMNFOA=TRE
—EFNFNA=THE
30th April 2003 30th April 2005 to HK$0.82 — 500,000 — 500,000
ZEE=F 29th April 2009 082 ETT
mA=+AH “TTREMA=+AE
—EFNFAA=TAR
30th April 2003 30th April 2006 to HK$0.82 — 500,000 - 500,000
—TE=F 29th April 2009 082 BT
mA=t+H “EERFEA=TRE
—EENFNAZ-TARA
2nd May 2003 2nd May 2004 to HK$0.82 — 2,000,000 — 2,000,000
—EE=F Ist May 2009 08287
A=A —ETMERAZRE
—EENFRA-H
2nd May 2003 2nd May 2005 to HK$0.82 — 2,000,000 — 2,000,000
—ERE=E I'st May 2009 082/
HRZH —ZThERACRAE
—ZTNAERA-R
2nd May 2003 2nd May 2006 to HK$0.82 — 2,000,000 — 2,000,000
—EEZHF [st May 2009 0827
A=A —FFAFHACAE
—FFNFHEA-A
— 25,500,000 — 25,500,000
Note: At the dates before the options were granted (29th and 30th April 2003), the fiek - AARROEZERHBRED R (=%

F=FEMNA-TABR=+H) 2EMEY
A0.82ETT ©

closing prices per share were both HK$0.82.
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SHARE OPTIONS (Contd)

Rule 17.08 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules") stipulates that the listed issuer is encouraged to disclose in its annual
report and interim report the value of options granted to participants set out in (i) to
(v) of Rule 17.07 during the financial year, and the accounting policy adopted for the
share options. The directors consider it inappropriate to value as a number of factors
critical for the valuation cannot be determined accurately. Therefore, the directors
consider that any valuation of the options based on various speculative assumptions

would not be meaningful but would potentially be misleading to the shareholders.

SUBSIDIARIES
Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 30th June 2003 are set out in

note 24 to the accounts.

INTEREST CAPITALISED
During the year, interest of HK$500,000 has been capitalised by the Group.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year were:

Mr HUI Sai Chung (Chairman)
Mr HUI Kwok Kwong (Deputy Chairman and Managing Director)
Dr WONG Chi Ying, Anthony
(changed from Independent Non-executive Director to Executive Director on
Ist April 2003)
Mr LAl Kam Wah
(changed from Independent Non-executive Director to Executive Director on
Ist May 2003)
Mr CHING Yu Lung
(appointed on |st April 2003)
Madam LIU Sau Lai
Mr NG Siu Kuen, Nelson
(resigned on 31st March 2003)
Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul*®
(appointed on |st April 2003)
Dr LAM Kwok Kin, Joseph*
(appointed on |st May 2003)

*  Independent Non-executive Directors

Save for the Chairman and the Managing Director, all of the Directors are subject to

retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company's Bye-laws.

Madam LIU Sau Lai, Mr CHING Yu Lung, Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul and Dr LAM Kwok Kin,
Joseph retire by rotation in accordance with clauses 86 and 87 of the Company's Bye-

laws and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The Independent Non-executive Directors have been appointed for a term subject

to retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company's Bye-laws.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting has a service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries,
which is not determinable by the employer within one year without payment of

compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group's business to which the
Company, its holding company or its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
Director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,

subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 30th June 2003, the interests and short positions of each Director and chief
executive in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFQ")), as recorded in the register maintained by the Company under
Section 352 of the SFO or as notified the Company were as follows:

(i) ordinary shares of HK$0./10 each in the Company

ESZRBEN

AERBERRBFAS LEREXTLESH
BERAQNFKETAMBARTLEE AR
—FRBAFLIREE CZERERIN MR L
REEH

ESRe AR

ARE - HERAFSEMBEARLESET
VEASEXKERIRNAFEERRALF
EREAERDALRAAR R EFER KM
EREBAEEZEEAL -

EERBBETRAERAQAREMER
EBRZERAREFZEERAR

“RE=FAASTH ARRREF &
BITBRABRERRSETMERZE (EE
REFFHEED ((EFHEEH])) ARA
ARRBRZBEHEICECRREEFHR RO
FIv2EFE L AM2 By - BERD REH
ZEERKBIT :

(i) XRABSREE010ETZEER

Number of shares of the Company beneficially held

ERgEzEAAARNEE
Personal Corporate Family Other
Name of Directors interests interests interests interests
EEnS BARz EEER KEER HEft s
Mr HUI Sai Chung HHIEELE  Long Positions & 8,218,000 158,000,000 (a) — —
Mr HUI Kwok Kwong ~ #FEI} %4 Long Positions # 2 13,616,000 154,735,000 (b) —_ —
Madam LIU Sau Lai EFEXZTLT Long Positions # 1,102,500 — —_ (c)
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS AND ESRBETRABRAATRAEM
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES BEEERARES 2RBERKR @)

AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION (Cont'd )

(ii) derivative to ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the Company (i) ZXRAAEREE.10ETZEBERITE
IA

Unlisted Share Options
(physically settled equity derivatives)
As at 30th June 2003

FEMRRE
Name of Directors (BELEZRETETIR)
EEEE R-BB=FXA=1+H
Mr HUI Sai Chung Eaugsid Long Positions ## & 3,000,000
Mr HUI Kwok Kwong STE R A Long Positions &% 3,000,000
DrWONG ChiYing Anthony ~ &F %8+ Long Positions ## % 3,000,000
Mr LAl Kam Wah RRELLE Long Positions # z 3,000,000
Mr CHING Yu Lung BmERE Long Positions 125 3,000,000
Madam LIU Sau Lai BEBLL Long Positions ## 25 3,000,000

Notes: WiaE -

(a) 153,000,000 of these shares are held by Good Benefit Limited ("Good Benefit"), a a) # Z 13 F Z 153,000,0000% 73 1 Good
company in which Ever Win Limited (“Ever Win") holds a 45.1% interest (note Benefit Limited([Good Benefit] ) #5% -

(c)). In addition, 5,000,000 shares are held by Ever Win directly. Ever Win Limited ([Ever Win]) % Good
Benefit B9 2+ R —# (i) »

S + 5,000,000 % {7 d1 Ever WinE 154 °

50,000 ordinary shares of one Canadian dollar each in Ever Win are held by a Ever WinB R E{E1 /07T 2 % iBAR {750,000/
trustee on behalf of a discretionary trust, the discretionary objects of which m—AERARR—B2EERESEE &
include Mr HUI Sai Chung and his family members. Mr HUI Sai Chung and his ERERAESZRBEARENERELRAR
spouse further own 30,834 and 5 class A non-convertible redeemable preferred ke  FHEEEREEESARNESR
shares of no par value in Ever Win respectively. Ever Win ALk 4 & &7 A] K ¥ A f§ o 8 5 i

30,834f% K25/l
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PORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EREERES

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND EERBETRASRFATRLER
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES HEEERARES 2 ESRAR (@)
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY

ASSOCIATED CORPORATION (Cont'd)

(b) 153,000,000 of these shares are held by Good Benefit, a company in which (b) FZFE{9 2153,000,000 T Good
Evergrow Company Limited (“Evergrow") holds a 45.1% interest (note (c)). In Benefiti & ° Evergrow Company
addition, 1,735,000 shares are held by Evergrow directly. Limited( [ Evergrow] ) ¥ & Good

Benefit BAZM+RE— % (i
(c)) ° It &b + 1,735,0008% i% {7 m
EvergrowH B A ¢

50,000 ordinary shares of one Canadian dollar each in Evergrow are held by a Evergrow& R EIE 11T 2 K WA {7

trustee on behalf of a discretionary trust, the discretionary objects of which 50,0000 i —BIEREANE —BEER

include Mr HUI Kwok Kwong and his family members. Mr HUI Kwok Kwong AEEHE  ARERESZFEEA

further owns 30,823 class A non-convertible redeemable preferred shares of no BEFEAEERERERE - FFEK

par value in Evergrow, 4 B SEvergrow ARERBEFA X
0] i 02 72 30,8230 -

(c) The beneficial interests of the Directors in the share capital of Good Benefit, () #F/Good Benefit(R_ZET=F R
which held 153,000,000 shares of the Company as at 30th June 2003, are as A=-+B#%E &2 7153,000,0004 f&
follows: I BRAZEREENT

Number of Percentage

Name of Directors shares of holding
EENA RE#E BRESL
Mr HUI Sai Chung St B & 4510 45.1%
Mr HUI Kwok Kwong ST R 4510 45.1%
Madam LIU Sau Lai EFELL 80 0.8%
Others Hth 900 9.0%
10,000 100.0%
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFRRLE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION (Cont'd)

At 30th June 2003, the following Directors owned interests in non-voting
deferred shares in Ngai Hing Hong Plastic Materials Limited, which are subject to
an option granted to Ngai Hing (International) Company Limited to acquire the

said non-voting deferred shares.

ESRBETHRABREAAHEEM
B LERARES 2 EERAER (9)

R-ZZ=F-A=1RH  THEEH
HRAZERHAERARBRRERE
R ES - Ml aldE & T Ngai
Hing (International) Company Limited

TRELREREREE RN 2BK

% o
Number of non-voting
deferred shares held
BEERENEERGEA

Personal Other
Name of Directors interests interests
EEpng BAER Hib#E#
Mr HUI Sai Chung ST EEE 200,000 50,000 (i)
Mr HUI Kwok Kwong HEEEE 200,000 50,000 (ii)
Notes: fii &k -

(i)  These shares are held by Ever Win.

(i)  These shares are held by Evergrow.

Save as disclosed above and other than certain nominee shares in the subsidiaries of
the Company held by certain Directors of the Company in trust for the Group as at
30th June 2003, none of the Directors and chief executives have any beneficial or
non-beneficial interests in the share capital of the Company and associated

corporations required to be disclosed pursuant to the SFO.
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PORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EREERES

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION (Cont'd)

Save as disclosed under the section headed by “Share Options™ above,

(a) at no time during the year was the Company, its holding company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors or chief
executives of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of

shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate; and

(b) none of the Directors, chief executives, their spouses or children under the age
of 18 had been granted any right to subscribe for shares in or debentures of

the Company, or exercised any such right.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF
THE COMPANY

As at 30th June 2003, the register of substantial shareholders maintained under
Section 336 of the SFO shows that the Company had not been notified of any
substantial shareholders’ interests and short positions, being 5% or more of the
Company's issued share capital, other than those of the Directors and chief

executives as disclosed above.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed during

the year.

2002/2003 FERE
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REPORT OF THE DIRECIORS
EFEREE )

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
The percentages of purchases for the year attributable to the Group's major

suppliers are as follows:

The largest supplier | 9%
Five largest suppliers combined 53%

The aggregate percentage of sales attributable to the Group's five largest customers
is less than 30% of the Group's total sales for the year ended 30th June 2003 and

therefore no additional disclosure with regard to the major customers is made.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders (which to the
knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the Company's share capital) had

an interest in the major suppliers noted above.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF BEST PRACTICE

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules throughout the year ended 30th June 2003 except that the term of
office for the Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at the Annual General Meeting in accordance
with the Company's Bye-laws. This does not comply with Paragraph 7 of the Code
of Best Practice which suggests that Independent Non-executive Directors should

be appointed for a specific term.
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PORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EREERES

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The written terms of reference which describe the authority and duties of the Audit
Committee were prepared and adopted with reference to “A Guide for The
Formation of An Audit Committee” published by the Hong Kong Society of

Accountants.

The Audit Committee provides an important link between the Board of Directors
and the Company's auditors in matters coming within the scope of the group audit.
It also reviews the effectiveness of the external audit and of internal controls and
risk evaluation. Dr WONG Chi Ying, Anthony and Mr LAl Kam Wah, previously
Independent Non-executive Directors and members of the Audit Committee until
Ist April 2003 and Ist May 2003 respectively, were appointed as Executive
Directors of the Company. Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul and Dr LAM Kwok Kin, Joseph
were appointed on Ist April 2003 and st May 2003 respectively as Independent
Non-executive Directors and become member of the Audit Committee. Meetings of
the Audit Committee will be held not less than twice a year and the Audit
Committee met the Company's auditors in September 2003 to review the Group's

results for the year before it was tabled for the approval of the Board of Directors.

AUDITORS

The accounts have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and,

being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

Chairman

HUI Sai Chung

Hong Kong,
8th October 2003
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REPORT OF THE AUDITORS
G o

PRICEWVATERHOUSE( QOPERS

B K A F AT

AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the accounts on pages 38 to 77 which have been prepared in

accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
AUDITORS

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of accounts
which give a true and fair view. In preparing accounts which give a true and fair view
it is fundamental that appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied

consistently.

It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based on our audit, on those
accounts and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the

contents of this report.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
22nd Floor Prince's Building
Central, Hong Kong
Telephone (852) 2289 8888
Facsimile (852) 2810 9888
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REPORT OF THE AUDITORS

v BHERES

BASIS OF OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Statements of Auditing Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Society of Accountants. An audit includes examination, on
a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the accounts. It
also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgements made by the
Directors in the preparation of the accounts, and of whether the accounting policies
are appropriate to the circumstances of the Company and the Group, consistently

applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and
explanations which we considered necessary in order to provide us with sufficient
evidence to give reasonable assurance as to whether the accounts are free from
material misstatement. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall
adequacy of the presentation of information in the accounts. We believe that our

audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion the accounts give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company and of the Group as at 30th June 2003 and of the Group's profit and cash
flows for the year then ended and have been properly prepared in accordance with

the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 8th October 2003
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CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND.LOS
BaERE e

| For the year ended 30th June 2003 RIE=EE=FAA=FALER

2003 2002

Note HK$'000 HK$'000

(= TR FTET

Turnover EXE 2 874,976 747,28|
Cost of sales SHE KA (749,513) (625,863)
Gross profit EH 125,463 121,418
Other revenues Hip i as 2 6l 668
Distribution costs 5 $HBEK R (27,010) (22,192)
Administrative expenses G163 (52,337) (55,397)
Operating profit R 3 46,727 44,497
Finance costs %8R 4 (l.-.-450)': (1,241)
Profit before taxation B 75 1 i A 45,277 437256
Taxation HIR 5(a) (2,450) (2,505)
Profit after taxation B B 1% i A 42,827 40,75
Minority interests DR R R (2,365) (2343)
Profit attributable to shareholders i R e 45 ' 7 6&17 40,462 38,408
Dividends iz 8 7 124,000 21,000
HK cents HK cents

Al Al

Earnings per share FRAMN 8 13.49 12.80
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DNSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
u BAGEaES

As at 30th june 2003 B =EE=FAA=+A |

2003 2002
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Pt = FERT FTEL
Fixed assets EE&E [ 135,699 83,855
Current assets mBEE
Inventories rE 13 97,423 70,245
Trade receivables B 5 U 14 172,856 166,124
Other receivables, H fth MR -
prepayments and deposits BNRRES 12,513 13,820
Cash and bank balances RAeE kR 63,995 46,486
346,787 296,675
Current liabilities nBEE
Trade payables BHEMR 15 62,288 47,071
Other payables Hfth FEAF 3R 5,985 12,586
Accruals BREM 7,185 9,985
Taxation B 5(b) 3,669 2,934
Obligations under finance REHERME
leases - current portion — B 18 3,481 87
Trust receipts loans - secured ERKRBER—FHA Il (e) 62,886 21,519
Short-term bank loans - secured RHRTER-FER 11 (e) 24,145 7,731
169,639 101,913
Net current assets FRDEE 177,148 194,762
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRDAM 312,847 278,617
Financed by: BERR
Share capital A 16 30,000 30,000
Other reserves Hihf# 17 36,724 35,424
Retained earnings R & s 7 17 208,998 192,536
Proposed dividends BERE 17 15,000 15,000
Shareholders’ funds BRR S 290,722 272,960
Minority interests DE IR R 6,784 5,371
Long-term liabilities RHIGE 18 15,341 286
312,847 278,617
On behalf of the Board RRESE
HUI Sai Chung HUI Kwok Kwong
Chairman Deputy Chairman and Managing Director
EJ BT EREFLEE
FritEE FFEX
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BALANCE SHEET
REEGXR

As at 30th June 2003 R-—FE=F, X F=1H

2003 2002
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 5F FTERT FET
Investments in subsidiaries MEBAREE 12 136,173 137,063
Current assets RBEE
Other receivables H i & 3 389 109
Cash and bank balances e RiRITHR 70 47
459 156
Current liabilities REEE
Other payables H fth & {50 452 515
Net current assets/(liabilities) FRBEE/ (BfF) 7 (359)
Total assets less current liabilities BEERLDEE 136,180 136,704
Financed by: EARER -
Share capital ;€N 16 130,000 30,000
Other reserves Hitf 17 90,986 90,986
Retained earnings R B8 7 17 194 718
Proposed dividends f=t=33) 95\ 17 15,000 15,000
Shareholders' funds R 136,180 136,704
On behalf of the Board RREEE

HUI Sai Chung
Chairman

*E

A
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Deputy Chairman and Managing Director
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\FTEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
r SoEREEE

For the year ended 30th une 2003 HE=EE=£A=1AILER |

2003 2002
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Pt 5E TER TER
Total equity brought forward R IECE: £ 272,960 245,328
Surplus/(deficit) on revaluation of ERRBNEMELERN
investment properties Bt/ (B#@) 17 1,300 (250)
Exchange differences arising on translation 2% /8 S\ & 2 A)
of the accounts of an overseas subsidiary REZERESR 17 — (26)
Net gains/(losses) not recognised in the RRBREER 2 K/
profit and loss account (B8) #& 1,300 (276)
Profit for the year RERF 17 40,462 38,408
Dividends BRE 17 (24,000) (10,500)
Total equity carried forward BREEEE 290,722 272,960
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW.ST;
BATLTE "

| For the year ended 30th une 2003 BE—EE=FAA=+HILEE

As restated
gE5
2003 2002
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
([ TERT FHAT
Operating activities BEEK
Net cash inflow generated from operations EEEBELZHERAFE 19(a) 27,625 45301
Interest paid on bank borrowings ENRITEENS (1,283) (1,182)
Hong Kong profits tax paid ESFENT (917) (2,174)
Net cash inflow from operating activities REZFBZASRAFR 25,425 41,945
Investing activities REER
Purchase of fixed assets BEETAE (43,024) (10,647)
Sale of fixed assets HEREEE 3,200 10
Interest received 28 211 103
Net cash outflow from investing activities REXB2RERLFHE (39,613) (10,434)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow before financing ~ BRERIRE (RH) /HRARE (14,188) 31,511
Financing activities g
New bank loans raised L RITER 19(b) 16,414 2,639
Repayment of bank loan ERRITER 19(b) — (2,778)
Increase/(decrease) in trust receipts loan #wm/ (RY) ERREER 19(b) 41,367 (4,634)
Repayment of capital element of BEREEE
finance leases B 19(b) (965) 2,131)
Dividend paid RS (24,000) (10,500)
Interest element of finance lease payments &b & fl & 7| 8. 25 (167) (59)
Dividend paid to minority shareholders ERNPERE 2R E 19(b) (952) (477)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from financing REZEERA/ (i) F8 31,697 (17,940)
Increase in cash and cash equivalents ReERREFHEM 17,509 13,571
Cash and cash equivalents brought forward AR & RE S EH 46,486 32,941
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes INEERRECHE — (26)
Cash and cash equivalents carried forward ~ BR&RB & EBESE 63,995 46,486
Analysis of balances of cash and RekBeFH
cash equivalents: A
Cash and bank balances Re RRITEER 63,995 46,486
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
r RE B i

| PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES | EEREHER
The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these accounts BHEUESRAMEAZEIESHRED
are set out below: W
(a) Basis of preparation (a) WHEEE

The accounts have been prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and comply with accounting
standards issued by the Hong Kong Society of Accountants (“HKSA").
They have been prepared under the historical cost convention except
that, as disclosed in the accounting policies below, investment properties

are stated at market value.

In the current year, the Group adopted the following Statements of
Standard Accounting Practice (“SSAPs") issued by the HKSA which are

effective for accounting periods commencing on or after [st January

2002:

SSAPI (revised) :  Presentation of financial statements
SSAPI| (revised) : Foreign currency translation
SSAPI5 (revised) :  Cash flow statements

SSAP34 :  Employee benefits

The adoption of the above new/revised SSAPs has no material effect on
the accounts, except for certain presentational changes which have been

made upon the adoptions.

The comparative figures presented herein have incorporated the effect

on the adoption of the new/revised SSAPs.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
RE B s |

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
(b)  Consolidation

44

The consolidated accounts include the accounts of the Company and its

subsidiaries (the “Group") made up to 30th June.

Subsidiaries are those entities in which the Company, directly or
indirectly, controls more than one half of the voting power; has the
power to govern the financial and operating policies; to appoint or
remove the majority of the members of the board of directors, or to cast

majority of votes at the meetings of the board of directors.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated profit and loss account from the effective

date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

All significant intercompany transactions and balances within the Group

are eliminated on consolidation.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary represents the difference
between the proceeds of the sale and the Group's share of its net assets
together with any unamortised goodwill or capital reserve which was not

previously charged or recognised in the consolidated profit and loss account.

Minority interests represent the interests of outside shareholders in the

operating results and net assets of subsidiaries.

In the Company's balance sheet the investments in subsidiaries are stated
at cost less provision for impairment losses. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends received and

receivable.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
r RE B i

| PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

(¢c) Fixed assets

()

(if)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings in respect
of which construction work and development have been
completed and which are held for their investment potential, any

rental income being negotiated at arm's length.

Investment properties are valued at intervals of not more than
three years by independent valuers; in each of the intervening years
valuations are undertaken by professionally qualified valuers. The
valuations are on an open market value basis related to individual
properties and separate values are not attributed to land and
buildings. The valuations are incorporated in the annual accounts.
Increases in valuation are credited to the investment properties
revaluation reserve. Decreases in valuation are first set off against
increases on earlier valuations on a portfolio basis and thereafter
are debited to operating profit. Any subsequent increases are

credited to operating profit up to the amount previously debited.

Upon the disposal of an investment property, the relevant portion
of the revaluation reserve realised in respect of previous valuations
is released from the investment properties revaluation reserve to

the profit and loss account.

Properties under construction

Properties under construction are investments in land (including
land use rights) and buildings on which construction work has not
been completed. These properties are carried at cost which
includes development and construction expenditure incurred and
interest and other direct costs attributable to the development less
any accumulated impairment losses. On completion, the properties
are transferred to other properties at cost less accumulated

impairment losses.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
RE B s |

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)
Fixed assets (Cont'd)

(9

(i)

(iv)

Other properties

Other properties are interests in land (including land use right) and
buildings other than investment properties and properties under
construction and are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses. Cost represents the purchase
price of the assets and other costs incurred to bring the asset into

its existing use.

Other fixed assets

Other fixed assets, comprising leasehold improvements, machinery
and equipment, furniture, fixtures and office equipment, motor
vehicles and tools and moulds are stated at cost less accumulated

depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation
Investment properties held on leases with unexpired periods of 20
years or less are depreciated over the remaining portion of the

leases.

Leasehold land (including land use right) of other properties is
depreciated over the period of the lease while other fixed assets
are depreciated at rates sufficient to write off their cost less
accumulated impairment losses over their estimated useful lives on

a straight-line basis. The principal annual rates are as follows:

Land 29%
Buildings 2-25%
Leasehold improvements 20%
Machinery and equipment 12.5%
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 20%
Motor vehicles 20%
Tools and moulds 20%

Improvements are capitalised and depreciated over their expected

useful lives to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
r RE B i

| PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
(c) Fixed assets (Cont'd)

(vi) Impairment and gain or loss on disposal of fixed assets

At each balance sheet date, both internal and external sources of
information are considered to assess whether there is any
indication that assets included in properties under construction,
other properties and other fixed assets are impaired. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated
and where relevant, an impairment loss is recognised to reduce the
asset to its recoverable amount. Such impairment losses are

recognised in the profit and loss account.

The gain or loss on disposal of a fixed asset other than investment
properties and properties under construction is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the

relevant asset, and is recognised in the profit and loss account.

(d) Assets under leases

()

Finance leases

Leases that substantially transfer to the Group all the risks and
rewards of ownership of assets are accounted for as finance leases.
Finance leases are capitalised at the inception of the leases at the
lower of the fair value of the leased assets or the present value of
the minimum lease payments. Each lease payment is allocated
between the capital and finance charges so as to achieve a constant
rate on the capital balances outstanding. The corresponding rental
obligations, net of finance charges, are included in long-term
liabilities. The finance charges are charged to the profit and loss

account over the lease periods.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over the shorter

of their estimated useful lives or the lease periods.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
RE B s |

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
(d) Assets under leases (Cont'd)

(i) Operating leases
Leases where substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
assets remain with the leasing company are accounted for as
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases net of any
incentives received from the leasing company are charged to the
profit and loss account on a straight-line basis over the lease

periods.

(e) Goodwill

7

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair
value of the Group's share of the net assets of the acquired subsidiary at
the date of acquisition. Goodwill on acquisitions that occurred prior to

Ist July 2001 was taken directly to reserves.

In accordance with SSAP 30 “Business combinations”, goodwill on
acquisitions occurring on or after Ist July 2001 is included in intangible
assets and is amortised using the straight-line method over its estimated

useful life.

Where an indication of impairment exists, the carrying amount of
goodwill, including goodwill previously taken to reserves, is assessed and

written down immediately to its recoverable amount.

Inventories

Inventories comprise trading stocks, raw materials and finished goods and
are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost, calculated
on the weighted average basis, comprises materials, direct labour and an
appropriate proportion of all production overhead expenditure. Net
realisable value is determined on the basis of anticipated sales proceeds
less estimated selling expenses and, where appropriate, the cost of

conversion from their existing state to a finished condition.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
r RE B i

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(g)

(h)

(i)

()

(k)

Accounts receivable
Provision is made against accounts receivable to the extent that they are
considered to be doubtful. Accounts receivable in the balance sheet are

stated net of such provision.

Cash and cash equivalents
For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash

equivalents comprise cash and bank balances.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and a
reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Where the Group expects
a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as a

separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain.

Deferred taxation

Deferred taxation is accounted for at the current taxation rate in respect
of timing differences between profit as computed for taxation purposes
and profit as stated in the accounts to the extent that a liability or an

asset is expected to be payable or recoverable in the foreseeable future.

Revenue recognition
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised on the transfer of risks and
rewards of ownership, which generally coincides with the time when the

goods are delivered to customers and title has passed.

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the rental

period.

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis, taking into
account the principal amounts outstanding and the interest rates

applicable.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
RE B s |

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

(1)

(m)

50

Translation of foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at exchange rates ruling

at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities expressed in

foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are translated at rates of

exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. Exchange differences arising in

these cases are dealt with in the profit and loss account.

The accounts of subsidiaries expressed in foreign currencies are

translated under the net investment method. Exchange differences arising

are dealt with as a movement in reserves.

Employee benefits

0]

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated liability
for annual leave as a result of services rendered by employees up

to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are not

recognised until the time of leave,

Pension obligations

The Group makes contributions to the mandatory provident fund
scheme (the "MPF Scheme") in Hong Kong, the assets of which are
generally held in separate trustee-administered fund. The pension
plan is generally funded by payments from employees and by the

Group.

The Group's contributions to the MPF Scheme are expensed as
incurred and are reduced by contributions forfeited by those
employees who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully in the

contributions.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
r RE B i

| PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
(m) Employee benefits (Contd)

(n)

(0)

(iif) Equity compensation benefits

Share options are granted to directors and employees of the
Group. No compensation cost is recognised on the date of the
grant of the options. When the options are exercised, the proceeds
received net of any transaction costs are credited to share capital

(nominal value) and share premium.

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the construction of an
asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for

its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset.

All other borrowing costs are charged to the profit and loss account in

the year in which they are incurred.

Segment reporting

In accordance with the Group's internal financial reporting the Group has
determined that geographical segments be presented as the primary
reporting format. Business segments are not presented as the secondary
reporting format because over 90% of the Group's turnover and
operating profit were contributed by manufacturing and trading of plastic

products.

In respect of geographical segment reporting, turnover are based on the

operating locations of group companies.

Unallocated costs represent corporate expenses. Segment assets consist
primarily of investment properties, properties under development, fixed
assets, inventories, receivables and operating cash. Segment liabilities
comprise operating liabilities and exclude items such as taxation and
deferred taxation. Capital expenditure comprises additions to fixed

assets.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS.

AR B f
2 REVENUES AND TURNOVER 2 HWBEREXR
The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal ARAZIBRBRREAER HIB
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 24 to the accounts. MELA s T EXHAFMNERE K FE
Revenues recognised during the year are as follows: 24 - FREAZWEWT -
Group
%M
2003 2002
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FET
Turnover 2xE
Sale of goods, net of returns and discounts HEEMm (MBREERITM) 874,976 747,281
Other revenues H ol zm
Rental income HEWA 400 565
Interest income FEBA 211 103
611 668
Total revenues U 875,587 747,949
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
RE B i =t

2

REVENUES AND TURNOVER (Cont'd)
An analysis of the Group's segment information by geographical segment is as

2 BBEREXRE
ARERIRZNEE S 2D BEHSN

follows: mr
2003
The People’s
Republic
of China
excluding
Hong Kong
(the “PRC")
REAR
HNE
Hong Kong (FREEE) Elimination Group
5E (MEl) i £8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR
Turnover BEE 825,981 233,977 (184,982) 874,976
Other revenues H bl 25 468 143 — 611
Total revenues Al 826,449 234,120 (184,982) 875,587
Segment results DERE 18,310 28,501 46,811
Unallocated costs AOBEEA (1,534)
Profit before taxation FRBLAT R R 45277
Taxation HiE _(2’450)
Profit after taxation i Bi 18 74 7 42,827
Minority interests PR RER (2,365)
Profit attributable to
shareholders R (G F 40,462
Segment assets NREE 298,856 183,167 482,023
Unallocated assets ADEEE 463
Total assets BRE 482,486
Segment liabilities SEBE 137,870 44,208 182,078
Unallocated liabilities AAEEMR 2,902
Total liabilities BeE 184,980
Capital expenditure BAXM 28,757 32,883 61,640
Depreciation nE 4,021 4,376 8,397

2002/2003 EEBE
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS.

AR B Fff =t
2 REVENUES AND TURNOVER (Cont'd) ) KBRREXEH
2002

Hong Kong The PRC Elimination Group
B8 fh i &M
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THAT THT THAL
Turnover BXE 715,544 209,253 (177,516) 747,28
Other revenues H i W a5 620 48 — 668
Total revenues @iz 716,164 209,301 (177,516) 747,949
Segment results TEPRE 20,312 24,755 45,067
Unallocated costs AP EKA (1L811)
Profit before taxation BB AR 43,256
Taxation BE (2,505)
Profit after taxation Briit g m A 40,751
Minority interests DU RS (2,343)

Profit attributable
to shareholders AR 3R B (S A 38,408
Segment assets AHEE 211,291 169,075 380,366
Unallocated assets AOREE 164
Total assets BEE 380,530
Segment liabilities HEBE 67,663 31,095 98,758
Unallocated liabilities AOEEE 3,441
Total liabilities BeE 102,199
Capital expenditure AR 2,491 8,156 10,647
Depreciation nE 6,132 4,503 10,635
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
L4 EEKS

KEREEE (#
EXBENABREDNREBRAMEL
B8 - RADERAEEEBELER
e

2 REVENUES AND TURNOVER (Cont'd) 2
Turnover and segment results are presented based on the operating locations

of group companies. Unallocated costs represent corporate expenses.

ARERBASINTZERE  BF
aHRAERRNEHRMIEENE
5 AL RARAREEIRXBKE LB
20 RERMNREEZHN -

Over 90% of the Group's turnover, operating profit and assets are attributable
to the manufacturing and trading of plastic products and accordingly no
analysis of the Group's turnover, contribution to operating profit and assets by

business segment is provided.

3 OPERATING PROFIT 3 BERA
Operating profit is stated after crediting and charging the following: BE RN DER AR TR R
BE :
Group
£
2003 2002
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER TRET
Crediting A
Gross rental income from investment properties RENZERELBA 400 565
Less: Outgoings W RE (36) (26)
Net rental income from investment properties BREVEHSUNFR 364 539
Gain on disposal of fixed assets HEETEEL W 501 —
Charging e
Auditors' remuneration R e
- Current year —REE 830 780
- Over-provision in prior year —-DaFEzEREERE — (100)
Depreciation: E -
- Owned fixed assets -BEEFAE 7,705 8,903
- Leased fixed assets -HEETEE 692 1,732
Operating lease rentals in THRBTZEE
respect of land and buildings HEES 5,534 2,190
Staff costs, including directors' emoluments (note 9) BImA (BEEEME) (HiF9) 50,816 45,145
Loss on disposal of fixed assets HEETEEZBE — 34

2002/2003 EEEE
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS.

RE B 5t
4  FINANCE COSTS 4 BIKER
Group
£
2003 2002
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT TERT
Interest on bank borrowings wholly RRAEAZEEEZRTT
repayable within five years BEZFE 1,783 ,182
Interest element of finance leases BREEEHN S5 167 59
1,950 1,241
Less: borrowing costs capitalised in A BEREER(E
properties under development REREFMEZRE (500) —
1,450 1,241
5  TAXATION 5 BiE
(a) Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 17.5% (2002: o) BENSHDRASEREFEA
16.0%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year. The Group's I EEAR AT IEREEs 2 1+
subsidiaries operating in the PRC have no assessable income and tHA(ZZZ=_F:B521HX)
accordingly no provision for PRC taxation has been made in the A8 ARAEEETREE M
accounts. B QA3 AT ] AR BA  BE
ENREREPERAER
The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated profit and loss GeBER2BERNLE:
account represents:
Group
&8
2003 2002
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTERT THEIT
Hong Kong profits tax BFENGEH
Current year FEE 1,672 2,642
(Over)/underprovision in previous years ~ AEFE (BEEE) /HBETRE (20) 85
1,652 2727
Deferred taxation (note 5(c)) EETIE (Pt 5(c)) 798 (222)
2,450 2,505
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-NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

iR B Myt
5 TAXATION (Contd) 5 BE@

(b) Taxation in the balance sheet represents the amount of Hong Kong (b)) EEBERAZHENRAEELRFE
profits tax provided for the current and previous years less the amounts RAGFEEENGHABREC N
of provisional profits tax paid. ZEGBHNHE -

(c) The movements in deferred taxation account are as follows: (c) BEHREERZZEHWMT :

Group
£m
2003 2002
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHET
Brought forward ARl 286 508
Transfer from/(to) profit and #s%a/ (#) BEX
loss account (note 5(a)) (PFt3E 5(a) 798 (222)
Carried forward Ee 1,084 286
Provided for in respect of: BIREES
Accelerated depreciation allowances MEFERKE 1,084 286
There was no material unprovided deferred taxation for the year. REAFERBEANBEHERER
% o
The revaluation of investment properties does not constitute a timing ARERABRZERTERUBIES
difference for deferred taxation purposes as realisation of the revaluation B QHERRENZELTEHELEH
surplus would not result in taxation liability. TR ZE o
6  PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS 6 KRREEEF
Included in the profit attributable to shareholders is profit of HK$23,476,000 SFARRRIRBECBREEMGERA B
(2002: HK$19,220,000) which is dealt with in the Company's own accounts. 23,476,000% T (= T T = &

19,220,000 7T) °
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS.

AR B f
7  DIVIDENDS RE
2003 2002
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THET
Interim, paid, of HK3.0 cents B+ AR S &k 3.0 &l
(2002: HK2.0 cents) per ordinary share (Z2ZT=F : 2.0#(l) 9,000 6,000
Final, proposed of HK5.0 cents RIRRHR S8 5.0 (L
(2002: HKS.0 cents) (Z2Z=F :50#)
per ordinary share (note (a)) (F&E(a) 15,000 15,000
24,000 21,000
Note: MieE

(a) At a meeting held on 8th October 2003, the directors proposed a final dividend
of HK5.0 cents per ordinary share. This proposed dividend is not reflected as a
dividend payable in these accounts, but will be reflected as an appropriation of

retained earnings for the year ending 30th June 2004,

8 EARNINGS PER SHARE
The calculation of earnings per share is based on the Group's profit
attributable to the shareholders of HK$40,462,000 (2002: HK$38,408,000) and
300,000,000 (2002: 300,000,000) ordinary shares in issue during the year.

No diluted earnings per share is presented as there is no dilutive potential

ordinary share during the year.

(@l R-BE=F+AN\BBFzZ&HL"
ESRAREREREBRE.0E -
Itk R B 2 3 X B B P B fE A
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SREF
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
r RE B i

STAFF COSTS (INCLUDING DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS) 9 BIRX(BREESHS)
2003 2002
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT TET
Salaries, wages and other allowances Frdl - TEREMZRE 47,067 42,715
Pension costs - defined RRSKA—FRE
contribution plans (note) fRErEl (PR 2222 2,191
Termination benefits FRERE 1,527 239
50816 45,145
Note: Bif&E

Prior to Ist December 2000, the Group contributed to a defined contribution
retirement benefit scheme (the “Scheme") which was available to all qualifying
employees. The assets of the Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. Contributions to the Scheme by the Group are
calculated as a percentage of the employees' basic salaries. No contribution has been
made by the Group to the Scheme since |st December 2000 as the Group elected to
contribute to the MPF Scheme as detailed below.

With effect from |st December 2000, the MPF Scheme was made compulsory as
enforced by the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority of Hong Kong. The MPF
Scheme is a defined contribution retirement benefit scheme administered by
independent trustees. Each of the employer and the employee has to contribute an
amount equal to 5% of the relevant income (plus cashable allowances) of the employee
to the MPF Scheme. Contributions from the employer are |00% vested in the
employees as soon as they are paid to the relevant MPF Scheme but all benefits derived
from the mandatory contribution must be preserved until the employee reaches the

retirement age of 65 subject to a few exception.

There were no forfeited contributions (2002: HK$15,000) under the Scheme during the
year. The aggregate employer's contributions net of the forfeited contributions amount
to approximately HK$2,222,000 (2002: HK$2,191,000) have been dealt with in the

profit and loss account of the Group during the year
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS.
W B M ST "

10 DIRECTORS” AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS 10 EZREEEEABZME

(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EBME
The aggregate amounts of the emoluments payable to Directors of the REAFERNAAR 2 EEMEE
Company during the year are as follows: BT -
Group Company
£m NG|
2003 2002 2003 2002
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FAET TERT FAT
Executive Directors HTE=R
Fees ik - — — —
Basic salaries, allowances and BEAHH - 2HR
other benefits in kinds HitBYH & 9,329 7,115 — —
Discretionary bonuses BITREMEAL — 1,316 — —
Pensions RRE 636 745 — —
Ex-gratia payments as RS -
compensation
for loss of office
- as director —EREF 1,471 — —_ —
- in connection with —ERAREEZ
management of EEE
the Group = = — =
Independent Non-executive BT
Directors 55
Fees ik 232 240 232 240
Basic salaries, allowances and EXREH - 28R
other benefits in kind EiEMH & - — = —
11,668 9416 232 240
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iR B Bt =t
10 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS 10 ESREREBAEZME (&)
(Cont'd)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Contd) (a) EBME (4)
The number of Directors of the Company whose emoluments fell within NETIEMES RN ZERAES
the following bands are set out as below: ABEZIMT

Number of directors

Emoluments band EEAE
MERH 2003 2002
Nil - HK$ 1,000,000 ## — |,000,000 7 7T 5% 2*
HK$1,000,001 - HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7 7€ — 1,500,000 7 7T I |
HK$1,500,001 - HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7 7T — 2,000,000 7 T . =
HK$2,000,001 - HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 # T — 2,500,000 7T —_ |
HK$2,500,001 - HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7 7T — 3,000,000 7T 2 2
HK$3,000,001 - HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 7 7T — 3,500,000 7 jT '|_ —
*  Include emoluments of Independent Non-executive Directors. *  BAEBUHHTEFzHME -
No Directors waived emoluments in respect of the years ended 30th BMESENENNREE_ST=F
June 2003 and 2002. R-ZZ-Ff A=1HILFEZ
e -
(b) Five highest paid individuals (b) EERBHMAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were highest in the Group for the ASELFERERSHMALS
year include three (2002: three) Directors whose emoluments are ZH(C2R-F: ZR)AEARAIZ
reflected in the analysis presented above. The emoluments payable to the EE EMEER Lo iTA i o
remaining two (2002: two) individuals during the year are as follows: FRARTESBME (CZT=F: W
B)EEFMALTZMENT
Group
£|
2003 2002
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT FET
Basic salaries, allowances and EARTM - 2HR
other benefits in kinds H At B W F 25 2,548 2434
Discretionary bonuses BITRE LA — 1,351
Pensions EAg 127 122
2,675 3907
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS.

W B FiEE
10 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS 0 EEREEEBASZHME @)
(Contd)
(b)  Five highest paid individuals (Cont'd) (b) BERBHMAL(E)
The emoluments fell within the following bands: MERBMT

Number of individuals

Emoluments band AH
& &5 2003 2002
HK$1,000,001 - HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 #7E — 1,500,000 # 7T 9 —
HK$1,500,001 - HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 77T — 2,000,000 7T — 2
Il FIXED ASSETS - GROUP I BEEE- &
Furniture,
fixtures
Properties Machinery  and office
Investment Other under  Leasehold and  equipment Motor  Tools and
properties  properties development improvements equipment ffl BER vehicles moulds Total

RENR  RENR RETHR ERNRKE HBERRR MOERR RE IRRKR L]
HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS000  HKSOM0  HKSO00  HKSO00  HK$000
féx fex  TEx TR 2 fER 2 TRz @ TRz @ TEx  TE:

Cost or valuation RAgfEE

At st uly 2002 R-2E-%+A-H 6100 68,445 7312 3,680 9,512 16179 829 269 2152
Additions #ig = 09 13903 3689 %125 45% 1490 1,088 61,640
Revaluation B 1099 = — — - = = = 1,099
Reclassification EHAB (213 3701 (4347) — — — — = -
Disposals e = = = = (3543) = (1,490) (282) (5.315)
At 30th June 2003 R-F2=%xA=1H 7845 70755 16,868 7569 131,104 20815 6,29 34698 28950

Accumulated depreciation ~ REHHTE

At st uly 2002 R-22-_£+f-H = 12110 = 2287 50,102 14106 6494 151 127671
Charge for the year EERNE = 1,590 = 51 3599 1627 690 179 8,397
Revaluation Bt (201) = = = = = - - (201)
Rechssifcation £ by pi] (201) - - - - - - -
Disposals & - - = ~ (1,148) = (1,468) - (2616)
At 30th june 2003 R=B2=%/R=1H — 13439 — 279 92553 15,733 5916 2751 33251
Net book value BEEE

At 30th June 2003 R=EE=£5xA=1H 7845 59256 16,868 4770 38551 508 2380 947 135,699
At 30th June 2002 R=B2-%£5R=1H 6100 56335 7312 1,393 8420 pAVE] 1,802 0 83,855
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L4 EEKS

| BEEE-58#)

Il FIXED ASSETS - GROUP (Contd)

The analysis of the cost or valuation at 30th June 2003 of the above assets is LREER-_"FT=FRA=THZK
as follows: ARBEESMWMT :
Furniture,
fixtures
Properties Machinery and office
Investment Other under Leasehold and  equipment Motor Tools and
properties properties  development improvements  equipment  &ffi » BER vehicles moulds Total

RENR  HiENR  REMNR BEDREE  HBRRR BLAZRR fi#E TIARER 28
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERL TER TR TERL TER TR TERL TER TR

At cost BRA = 70755 16,868 7569 131,104 20815 8,29 3698 261,08
At 2003 professional Z2%CF
valuation 26 7,845 - - - - - - - 7,845

7,845 72,755 16,868 1,569 131,104 20815 8.2% 3,698 268,950

The analysis of the cost or valuation at 30th June 2002 of the above assets is LREER-FF-_F/A=THZK
as follows: AREESFTOT -
Furniture,
fitures
Properties Machinery and office
Investment Other under Leasehold and equipment Motor Tools and
properties properties  development  improvements equpment M- KER vehicles moulds Total

BENE  AehR  RETHE HENRRE  BSRARE  HOZRE nE IARKA gE
HES000  HKSO00  HKSO000  HKSO00  HKSOOD  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO0
Tz T S22 Tz T T Tz Tin T

At cost fah A = 68,445 7312 3680 9852 16279 8296 2892 205426

At 2002 professional “Z22-F
valuation BEiE 6,100 = = — = = — — 6,100
6100 68,445 7312 3680 9850 16279 829 2892 21152
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BE B K sE k]

Il FIXED ASSETS - GROUP (Cont'd)

EEEE -8

(a) The Group's interests in investment properties and other properties at (a) AEERREVEREMYFZE
their net book values are analysed as follows: w2 REFESNMT :
2003 2002
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR BT
Held on leases of between REBNFTFERTFZ
10 to 50 years: HAOEE :
- in Hong Kong —-&# 26,449 25,719
- outside Hong Kong —BRAIMEE 40,652 36,716
67,101 62435
(b) Certain other properties of the Group were reclassified as investment b) AEEEXBHEMNER_-FTZ=F
properties on 3|st May 2003. hARA=T—BEHPERREDE -
(c) All investment properties of the Group were revalued as at 30th June ©) AREZIRENER-_FTE=
2003 on the basis of their open market values by Chung, Chan & ANB=ZTHABUEXKEMTE
Associates, an independent firm of professional valuers. The surplus ETRARMERESR - READ
arising on revaluation of HK$1,300,000 (2002: deficit of HK$250,000) 2S5 E81,300,0008T(ZEE
was taken directly to the investment properties revaluation reserve (note —4F : [518250,000/% L) B E#EE
17). ARBEMESEHERA HEF17) -
(d) As at 30th June 2003, the cost and accumulated depreciation of fixed (d R=FF=F/-A=+H x%H
assets held by the Group under finance leases amounted to REMEEEREZEATEEZK
approximately HK$ 14,881,000 (2002: HK$ 18,302,000) and HK$971,000 AR EHITE S R4 514,881,000
(2002: HK$18,116,000) respectively. BT (22 = F © 18,302,000
L) R971,0008 L (BT =% :
18,116,000 7T)
(e) As at 30th June 2003, certain investment and other properties of le) R=ZFF=FXA=1H &K@

the Group with an aggregate net book value of approximately
HK$47,894,000 (2002: HK$46,057,000) have been pledged to

banks to secure for banking facilities granted to the Group.

B [ )% {E 48 %8 4047,894,000% TT
(Z2Z % : 46,057,000 L) Z
ATREVERAMHREERT
BI1 AEKERBRAEE -
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
L4 EEKS

[2

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

12 MEBARRE

Company
AT

2003 2002
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FHT
Unlisted shares, at cost JE LM « KA 62,711 62,711
Amounts due from subsidiaries FE U B R A Rl 3008 74,665 74,352
Amount due to a subsidiary EAHEARRE (1,203) —
136,173 137,063

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company as at 30th June 2003

are set out in note 24 to the accounts.

The amounts due from and due to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and

have no fixed terms of repayment.

ALAR-_BE=FA A=THEEE
MR Rl 2 SRR R B At eE24

B U e A BRS R) BROUR L AR
B BEEEZENHR -

INVENTORIES 13 FE&
Group
£m
2003 2002
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET F#ET
Trading stocks BIEBER 48,255 28,827
Raw materials RH 32,108 31,586
Finished goods BLPK 17,060 9,832
97,423 70,245

At 30th June 2003, the carrying amount of inventories that are carried at net

realisable value amounted to HK$1,407,000 (2002: HK$1,770,000).

2002/2003 EEEE

R-ZZBT=FA A=1TH K28 F
558 2 75 BRME{E &1,407,000% 7t
(ZET =4 :1,770,00087TT) °



NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS.

iR B Ffi 5
|4 TRADE RECEIVABLES 14 B5EKR
The aging analysis of trade receivables is as follows: BEZRUBRNERAITOT
Group
|
2003 2002
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FTHET
Below 90 days 152,047 146,075
91 - 180 days 15,325 17,099
Over 180 days 5,484 2,950
172,856 166,124

The majority of the Group's sales are with credit terms of 30 to 90 days. The

remaining amounts are on letter of credit or documents against payment.

ARERIHHENEEHAR0E0
B ERUAGARINRRESA#

T
IS TRADE PAYABLES I5 EZEMAR
The aging analysis in trade payables is as follows: BEIRMARMBRATMOT :
Group
&8
2003 2002
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT TFAT
Below 90 days 61,263 45,054
91 - 180 days 156 1,514
Over 180 days 869 503
62,288 47,071
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B B s
16 SHARE CAPITAL l6 BA&
Company
A
2003 2002
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERX THT
Authorised: ETE R
800,000,000 (2002: 800,000,000) 800,000,000 (=ZZ =4 : 800,000,000)
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each SREE.10EB T2 ERBR 80,000 80,000
Issued and fully paid: ERE{TRBERE :
300,000,000 (2002: 300,000,000) 300,000,000 (=ZZ =4 : 300,000,000)
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each SREE0.10E T2 E@mAR 130,000 30,000
Note: et -

BE-Z2T-F+- ARBRESRMZBRET
B ARAZERRAAAARES (BEAGE
B RERWAR AN 2 EF ([BEHE)) - REAF

Pursuant to the share option scheme approved and adopted on 5th December 2002, the
Board of Directors of the Company may offer eligible employees (including executive

directors) rights to subscribe for shares of the Company (the “Share Option”).

Movements in the number of Share Options outstanding during the year are as follows: EHATTEZBRESSHMOT
Number of Share Options
fBRES B

2003 2002
At the beginning of the year F4 = ES
Granted on 30th April 2003 (Note (i) R-ZBZE=-FmA=1B&FY (M) 1,500,000 —
Granted on 2nd May 2003 (Note (ii)) R-ZEE=FH A _B&HH (M) 24,000,000 =
At the end of the year FR 125,500,000 —

(i)  On 30th April 2003, the Company granted 1,500,000 Share Options to certain

employee. The Share Options are exercisable at HK$0.82 per share.

(i)  On 2nd May 2003, the Company granted 24,000,000 Share Options to certain
employees. The Share Options are exercisable at HK$0.82 per share.

2002/2003 EEEE

(i)

(ii)

R-ZE=F#MA=+H  ARAAE
8 #% 111,500,000 A 1E - Hi7EE
BER0.82ZETT -

W_ZE-—EFF-H ARQFMES
1 1124,000,000/ BB A iE - HiTPER
k0828 T -



NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
RE B s |

16 SHARE CAPITAL (Contd) 6 MA (&)
(iii)  Share Options outstanding at the end of the year have the following terms: i) RERMATEZBREGRDOT :
Number of Share Options

Expiry Date Exercise price BRERE

258 A TRE 2003 2002

Directors EHE

— Ist May 2009 -ZEENAFRAR—H HK$0.82 0.82/7T 18,000,000 =

Employees {=]

— 29th April 2009 ~-ZETAFEA=TNAA  HKS082 082787 1,500,000 =

~ Ist May 2009 -ZEFNFHA-H HK$0.82 0.82 /7T 16,000,000 —
125,500,000 =

(iv)

68

At the dates before the options were granted (29th and 30th April 2003), the
closing prices per share were both HK$0.82.

iv) A2 F) IR 47 7 B 4% 452 o B R B B
(ZZRE=FMA=TABR=1+H)Z
Wi (835 80,828 T ©

ANNUAL REPORT 2002!‘2003



-NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

iR B Bt =t
I7 RESERVES 17 EE
Group Company
8 2
2003 2002 2003 2002
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET TER FET
Share premium gL | - -
Brought forward and carried forward RARES 28,475 28475 28,475 28475
Capital reserve BRGE
Brought forward and carried R REE
forward (note 17(a)) (Bt 17(a) 408 408 - -
Contributed surplus E4ER
Brought forward and carried A REE
forward (note 17(b)) (P& 17(0)) = - 62511 62511
Exchange fluctuation reserve ERRBEE
Brought forward Al 5229 5,255 — —
Exchange difference on translation of REBNHBAA
the accounts of an overseas subsidiary BEZERZ® — (26) — —
Carried forward e 5229 5229 - =
Investment properties revaluation reserve RENEERER ﬁ
Brought forward Al 1312 1,562 - —
Surplus/(deficit) on R4/ (B8)
revaluation (note |1) (B 11) 1,300 (250) — —
Carried forward g4 2602 1312 - -
Other reserves HibEfE 36,724 35424 90,986 90,986
Retained earnings REEAN
Brought forward E 4 207,536 179,628 15,718 6,998
Profit for the year REEH 40,462 38,408 23476 19,220
2001/2002 (2002: 2000/2001) —%%3-/-%3-%§
final dividends paid (ZF22F:
“$E5/-TF-FR)
ERAHRE (15,000) (4500) (15,000) (4500)
2002/2003 (2002: 2001/2002) BT /-%F-%F
interim dividends paid (Z23=fF:
—2%-/_RT_£[)
BRRHRE (9,000) (6,000) (9,000) (6,000)
Carried forward &8 223,998 207536 15,194 15718
Representing: BT
Retained earnings R A 208,998 192536 194 718
Proposed final dividends RARDRE 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000
223,998 207,536 15,194 15718
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS.
BE B K sE k]

17 RESERVES (Contd)

(@)

The capital reserve of the Group represents the aggregate amount of the
non-voting deferred shares of Ngai Hing Hong Plastic Materials Limited
and the difference between the nominal amount of the share capital
issued by the Company in exchange for the aggregate nominal amount of
the share capital of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the group

reorganisation in 1994 (the “Reorganisation”).

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the difference
between the consolidated shareholders’ funds of Ngai Hing
(International) Company Limited at the date on which the Reorganisation
became effective and the nominal amount of the Company's shares
issued under the Reorganisation. At group level the contributed surplus is

reclassified into its components of reserves of the underlying subsidiaries.

17 & &)

(o) AEBZEABENERAZPBER
HERAFRZERERETRKE
BEERR-ANAEEALARERE
B4 ([E4)) BT 2BRATEN
BB BAR 2 RAEEE
EMEZEE -

b) ARBZESZ#TENgal Hing
(International) Company Limited#
BREHBMZEAREASERA
ARBERMETZROEEREZ
EB c AREZRBRBDENBA
EBNBRRZHEERER -

18 LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 18 REGRE
Group
£m|
2003 2002
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FTET
Obligations under finance leases HEMERE
(note 18(a)) (Kt 18(a)) 17,738 87
Deferred taxation (note 5(c)) EREBE (FE 5(c)) 1,084 286
18,822 373
Current portion of long-term liabilities &HI& &2 ENEAZ 5 (3.481) (87)
15,341 286
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iR B Fff =
I8 LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (Cont'd) 18 REEE®)
(a) At 30th June 2003, the Group’s finance lease liabilities were repayable as (a} R-FEE=F/A=1H ' &&H
follows: MREREBENT :
2003 2002
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER THT
Within one year —FR 3,956 104
In the second year F=F 4,032 —
In the third to fifth year E-EZEERE 11,060 —
19,048 104
Future finance charges
on finance leases MERGZRRABER (1,310) (17)
Present value of obligations
under finance leases HEHREREZRE 17,738 87
The present value of obligations under finance leases is as follows: RERSEELBRENT :
2003 2002
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT TFHET
Within one year —FR 3,481 87
In the second year =5 3,654 -
In the third to fifth year E=FZEFRE 10,603 —
17,738 87

2002/2003 EEEE
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS.

AR B Fff =t
19 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT 19 GERSRBRME
(a) Reconciliation of operating profit to net cash inflow generated from (a) BERFREEELZRERAF
operations oEl il
Group
£®
2003 2002
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TET
Operating profit BEREN 46,727 44,497
Depreciation of fixed assets EEEENE 8397 10,635
(Gain)/loss on disposal HEETEEZ
of fixed assets (W) /18 (501) 34
Interest income FLSHA (211) (103)
Operating profit before BER W ER 2 @EET
working capital changes 54,412 55,063
Increase in inventories FRZEM (27,178) (8,429)
Increase in trade receivables, g SRR - E i B UGR -
other receivables, prepayments AT F R iEE 2 50
and deposits (5,425) (16,177)
Increase in trade payables, other B HEfF - EitERFR
payables and accruals TAIRER 2 m 5816 14,844

Net cash generated from
operations BEELZATRARS 27,625 45,301
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R B M5t
19 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT 19 GEAEESRBRME @)
(Contd)
(b) Analysis of changes in financing during the year (b) FABEZBSH
Short-term Minority Obligations under Trust
bank loans interests finance leases receipts loans

RHRTER SURRER RERERE RRRBER
2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HKFO000 HK$'000 HKFO00 HK$000 HK$000
TE#r TEr TFRx TEx TEx TEAxL FEz TER

Brought forward Al 7.731 1870 5371 3,505 87 2218 21,519 26,153
New bank loans raised MEETER 1644 2639 - — - - - —
Repayment during the year REEER —  (778) - — — — = =
Increase/(decrease) in #m/ ()
trust receipts loans EERBER — — — - — — 41367 (4634)
Dividend paid to RO EHRR
minority shareholders ZHRE — — (952) (477) — — — —
Inception of finance leases REHERB — — — — 18616 — — —
Capital element of finance REMEXL
lease payments RIERE — — - — (965) (2,131 - —
Share of profit by PURR
minority shareholders BEA5 &R — — D23 2343 = = = =
Carried forward %8 24,145 1731 6,784 5371 17,738 87 62886 21519
20 COMMITMENTS 20 EIE
(a) Capital commitments for property, plant and equipment (a) BEY¥ BERIFZREANR
2003 2002
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTERT THET
Contracted but not provided for BEENEREE 1,148 16,429
Authorised but not contracted for EREERREN — —
1,148 16,429
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BE B M "

20 COMMITMENTS (Cont'd)
(b) Commitment under operating leases
As at 30th June 2003, the Group had future aggregate minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of land and

20 EIE (&)

(b) HEHERE
R-BT=F,A=1H &&£E
ERTH MRz BB nRE

buildings as follows: FLIUBHEEERE ZRARRD
HEMR :
2003 2002
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FTERL
Not later than one year —ER 5,580 5,354
Later than one year and —FRENERAF
not later than five years 10,635 14,489
Later than five years HhFE 1,477 2,954
17,692 22,797
21 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 20 HEAME

As at 30th June 2003, the Company and the Group had the following
contingent liabilities:

(a) Guarantee in respect of the due performance of a subsidiary under a
contract manufacturing agreement to the extent of HK$20,000,000
(2002: HK$20,000,000);

(b) Guarantees given to banks for banking facilities granted to its subsidiaries
to the extent of approximately HK$205,360,000 (2002: HK$175,000,000);
and

(c) InApril 2003, a customer (the "Customer”) Issued a Writ of Summons in
the High Court of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region against a
subsidiary of the Company (the “Subsidiary”) and filed a Statement of
Claim in June 2003 claiming against the Subsidiary for US$589,590.53
(the “Claim”) for losses and damages alleged to have been suffered by
the Customer as a result of alleged breach of contract entered into
between the Customer and the Subsidiary for goods sold by the
Subsidiary to the Customer. On the basis of Independent legal advice
obtained, the Subsidiary has (i) filed a defence and counterclaim to the
Claim and (i) taken out Third Party Proceedings against the supplier of
the subject goods. In the opinion of the Directors, the Subsidiary is
unlikely to suffer any loss for the Claim and no provision is considered
necessary.

74

RZBE=F)A=1H  FRARE
REZEFRENT

(a) ARABE—BABRERERKN
BLARZBEYNRERERR
20,000,000 T (=22 — F :
20,000,000 70) Z 1%

b) ARAREMBLARZEIEE -
) 8 17 #2 £t & = 47 205,360,0007%
(=22 =% : 175,000,000%
T ZER R

(c) R-ZZ=FmNMA —ZFF([#“E
Fl) AEAR—RHBAR ([ R
Ra)l) REBRITHES S5 %
HERSH - IN-_BE=F A%
HEZRRME  EBZMBARE
REZEFRIZENBEEARM
B 3R589,690.53% T ([Z B R]) Z
BAREE - BREBLERER %
ML RBHRZRRELNARR
BRERINE 2 HEGETE=S
HEERIER - ARREFRRZM
BRRTEREZREMBREMBL
REZEHEE -
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
L4 EEKS

22 ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY

The directors regard Good Benefit Limited, a company incorporated in the

British Virgin Islands, as being the ultimate holding company.

23 APPROVAL OF ACCOUNTS

The accounts were approved by the board of directors on 8th October 2003.

24 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at 30th June 2003:

Place of
incorporation or

establishment/operation
* kind of legal entity

Issued and
fully paid
up share capital/

22 RRERAT
EFRALQAARKERAF BGood
Benefit Limited (£ 3 & 5 & B B 2 il A%
MZARF]) e

23 #ERE
REER-_ZE=F+H\BREFSH
0 o

24 FEREAR
RZZZ=F A=1H FRAZIE
MERAMT

Effective percentage
of equity
held indirectly

HMRYL registered capital by the Company

Name R 3L R 4R i B ERTE Principal activities AATEERE

2% *EANEE BEREERMEX FTEXY¥ ZHEHERABESHL

Dongguan Ngai Hing The PRC HK$90,000,000 Manufacture and 100
Plastic Materials Ltd. * wholly foreign- 90,000,000 & 7T sale of colorants
REREEERE owned enterprise and compounded
BER QA L plastic resins
*OBRERE HNERFERBHER
B EA KRR

Hong Kong Colour Hong Kong 500,000 Manufacture and 100
Technology Limited B ordinary shares trading of colorants
HEEXARAR of HK$| each and compounded
500,000 &k plastic resins
BR1ER HERERECRER
EEa KR

Ngai Hing Engineering Hong Kong 2,000,000 Manufacture, 762
Plastic Materials Bk ordinary shares trading, marketing
Limited of HK$ | each and promotion
REIRZHAERAT 2,000,000 ¥ @k of engineering
FR1ET plastic products

2002/2003 EEEE
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BE B K sE k]

24 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

Place of

incorporation or

establishment/ operation

* kind of legal entity

Issued and
fully paid

up share capital/

24 TEHBAT (8

Effective percentage
of equity
held indirectly

Rin>aad registered capital by the Company
Name YR EEHH ERTR Principal activities EARMEERE
&% *EAER BERE/EMEFR TEXB ZEBRRAESH
Ngai Hing Hong Plastic Hong Kong 1,000 Trading of plastic 100
Materials Limited BB ordinary shares materials and
REZBREABRAR of HK$| each pigments
1,000 & i@ A% BEZBRM
gR1ET ke
500,000 (Note a)
non-voting (HtzEa)
deferred shares
of HK$| each
500,000 # 1% R4
EER S 1 AT
Shanghai Ngai Hing The PRC HK$12,000,000 Manufacture and 100
Plastic Materials Co, * wholly foreign- 12,000,000 % 7T sale of colorants
Ltd. owned enterprise and compounded
FAREERBRER H plastic resins
RRAF I EBELE HERHEERH
K& & & s
Tsing Tao Ngai Hing The PRC HK$10,500,000 Manufacture and 85
Plastic Materials Co., * sino-foreign 10,500,000 % 7T sale of colorants
Ltd. equity joint and compounded
BEERAEBBRY venture plastic resins
ARAT FE HERHEERR
*PONSELE REE & KR
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
r RE B i

24 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

Notes:

()

(©

The holders of the non-voting deferred shares in Ngai Hing Hong Plastic Materials
Limited (“NHH") shall not be entitled to any participation in the profits or
surplus assets of NHH and they are not entitled to receive notice of or attend or
vote at any general meeting of NHH in respect of their holdings of such deferred

shares.

Ngai Hing (International) Company Limited has been granted an option by the
holders of the non-voting deferred shares to acquire these shares for an

aggregate cash consideration of HK$4.

The above table includes the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion of
the Directors, principally affected the results of the year or formed a substantial
portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would,

in the opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

The aggregate net assets of subsidiaries not audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers
under statutory requirements amounted to approximately 30.3% (2002: 40.0%) of

the Group's total net assets.

2002/2003 EEEE

24 TEMBLAE (8

i B

(a)

(b)

(e)

REZBRABRAR((RE)) BERE
BERBRHZEEARESARR G
MEAFBREED K - MERHEREZ
BREBRHUBRBERRAGBERLRF
RARFASINE LRE -

Ngai Hing (International) Company
LimitedbA 3R & 8 (X (8478 o i S 5 R4
BRRHHFEARLABEZSRG 2
SEARE -

FRIGEFRARHAFERARKE
EYEIHERASHAEFEZEEN
ALZADRNEAR - EERRAWEHI
HiMBARZFEE<ANBRN
Eo

WM ER B A KE RN EIATA
EERZMBARAZAERERRESL

EMEAETEBBNES 2= TH=
(ZZZ-_F :{GHz0+) o
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL S
AEPBERE :

The results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years are as

ARERBENERHBFERIES  EERR

follows: BT -
2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET FET FET FET
Results 4
Profit attributable to
shareholders 15 3R 1 5 40,462 38,408 15,798 33,884 1,463
Assets and liabilities EEREE
Total assets EEEE 482,486 380,530 342,761 331,39 266,795
Total liabilities BEREE (184,980) (102,199) (93928) (91,559) (61,527)
Minority interests DY IR RIE S (6,784) (5371) (3,505) (1,150) (200)
Shareholders' funds R 290,722 272,960 245,328 238,687 205,068
Profit attributable to shareholders Shareholders’ funds
R EEAE BRI RREE
(HK$'000 F&37T) (HK$'000 Fi&7)
45,000
40,000 $ §_
. o= 9 300,000 8 &_
35,000 &_ - S s
3 250,000 3 Y o N N
30,000 ’ o= 9
g &
25,000 200,000 §-
20,000 2 150,000
N~
15,000 )
100,000
10,000
50,000
5,000 ’
§
0 ~ =
1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003
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_COMPANY DIRECTORY
A EIE

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Ngai Hing Hong Plastic Materials Limited
Hong Kong Colour Technology Limited

Ngai Hing (GZFTZ) Trading Co., Ltd.

Ngai Hing Engineering Plastic Materials Limited

Hong Kong Office:

Unit 3, 6th Floor, Hopeful Factory Centre
|0 Wo Shing Street

Fotan, New Territories

Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2693 1663

Fax: (852) 2694 0877

Website: http://www.nhh.com.hk

E-mail address: info@nhh.com.hk

Hong Kong Factory:

| 7 Dai Fu Street

Tai Po Industrial Estate

Tai Po, New Territories

Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2693 1772 1 2660 0208
Fax: (852) 2694 0017 / 2667 4831

Dongguan Factory:

Chi Ling Industrial Zone, Hou Jie Town
Dongguan City

Guangdong Province

The People's Republic of China

Tel: (86) 769-558 8755  Zip: 523940
Fax: (86) 769-558 1756

Guangzhou Office:

Room I 117, I l/F

Jie Tai Plaza Management Office
218-222 Zhong Shan Liu Road
Guangzhou

The People's Republic of China

Tel: (86) 20-8132 0696 Zip:510180
Fax: (86) 20-8132 0695

2002/2003 EREE

BRERTARAF
(REREZMALZ BERAFA)
REBBREARAR
BEeEXARAF
BRE(BNRBEE)EZERLT
RETEZHAERAT

EEREE

5&

FRNR

REEI0H
BERIERLCEIE

T 1 (852) 2693 1663

BE : (852) 2694 0877

484 © http://www.nhh.com.hk
ETFEH 4 ¢ info@nhh.comhk

EHEEIL

&k

HRAHE

ABIEBAEEI7H

TiE ¢ (852) 2693 1772 1 2660 0208
BHE : (852) 2694 0017 / 2667 4831

RERY

REARKME

BRE

E3ii}

EHEREIER

T (86) 769-558 8755 EHUET ¢ 523940
8 H : (86) 769-558 1756

RMNMERE

PEARAANE

BMm

Bl 7R BR218-2225

BEESZIEIITE

E3E ¢ (86) 20-8132 0696 BWHE : 510180
BE : (86) 20-8132 0695
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COMPANY DIRECTORY.
AF)ETS

Shanghai Office:

Unit E, | 6th Floor

Zhao Feng Universe Building

No. 1800 Zhongshan West Road
Shanghai

The People's Republic of China

Tel: (86) 21-6440 0997  Zip: 200233
Fax: (86) 21-6440 0977

Shanghai Factory:

No.388 Xinqu Road

Qingpu Industrial Zone

Shanghai

The People's Republic of China

Tel: (86) 21-6921 3333 Zip: 201700
Fax: (86) 21-6921 5555

Qingdao Factory:

Haier (Jiac Zhou) International Industrial Zone
Jiao Zhou, ECO & TEC Development Zone
Qingdao

The People's Republic of China

Tel: (86) 532-7273100  Zip: 266300

Fax: (86) 532-7273110

Chengdu Office:

4th Floor, Huaxia Building

No.| Jianshe North Road Section 3
Chengdu City

Sichuan Province

The People's Republic of China

Tel: (86) 28-8328 5026  Zip: 610051
Fax: (86) 28-8328 5126

8o

LEREE

FEARKNE

Lgm

o LI 75 B 1 8005

K LIBHAE

|61 ERE

E 5 ¢ (86) 21-6440 0997 BEREE : 200233
{8 : (86) 21-6440 0977

LB

FEARLHE

EiBm

ERIXEE

#7232 3885

B5E ¢ (86) 21-6921 3333 BEE : 201700
BE : (86) 21-6921 5555

BEREL

REARLNE

EEBNEBERMAZEERE
SEEBMNERIER

B35 ¢ (86) 532-7273100 BEUESE ¢ 266300
#H : (86) 532-7273110

BEBHEE

hEARKNE

IRy €-10)

BRIAR=B—%

EEAEMNE

E % (86) 28-8328 5026 HHETE ¢ 610051
B H : (86) 28-8328 5126

ANNUAL REFORT 2002!‘2003



	2003_1
	2003_2
	2003_3
	2003_4
	2003_5
	2003_6
	2003_7
	2003_8
	2003_9
	2003_10
	2003_11
	2003_12
	2003_13
	2003_14
	2003_15

